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NASEEM SALEM (24)′

aka N`ick′ ″

PALOⅣAR CARD CLUB (25)′
HARVEY SOUZA (26)′
VC CARDROOM′  Inc. (27)′
dba S`e'en Mi■ e casinO′ ″
fka ｀`Vil■ age Card club′ ″

Defendants.

The grand jury

Count 1

(■ llega■ Bookmaking Business)

From at ■east in or about 2013′  up to and including′  in or about

November ■8′  20■ 5′  within the Southern District of California and

e■ sewhere′  defendants DAVID STRO」 ′ aka F`at DaVe′ ″ PATTHEW GREEさ πV00D′

」EFFREY  BROADT′   JEFFREY  STOFF′   ARTURO  DIAZ― RAMIREZ′  JAIME  BEHAR′

ROBERT  STRO」 ′  CRAIG  KOLK′   JEAN  PAUL  ROJO′   JOSHUA JONES′   RICARDO

CASTELLANOS― VELASQUEZ′  ALEXいさDRA KANE′  BRYAN SIBBACH′  」OSEPH PALERMO′

THOⅣAS Ⅳ臨 LOZZI′   aka  T`ommy Ty′ ″  STEPHEN BEDNAR′   aka  S`tevie  T′ ″

CHRISTOPHER PARSONS′   」EFFREY MOHR′   KYLE ALLEN′   and MICHAEL HIPPLE′

knowing■ y  and wi■ ■fu■■y′  did  conduct′  finance′  manage′  supervise′

diFect and own a■ ■ or part of an ュ■■ega■  gamb■ ing bus■ ness′  as that

term is defined in Title ■8′  United States Code′  section ■955(b)(■ )′

(2)′  and (3)′  to wit a bookmaking business that violated California

Penal Code′  Section 337(a)′  whiCh involved five or more persons who

conducted′   financed′  managed′   superv■ sed′  directed and owned a■ ■ or

part  of  said  il■ ega■  gamb■ing  business′   and  which  remained  in

substantia■ ■y continuous operation for a period in excess of thirty

days and had a gross revenue of  S2′ 000.00  in any sing■ e day′  in

violation of Tit■ e ■8′  United States Code′  Sections 1955 and 2.
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Count 2

(■ llega■ Poker and Black」 ack Business)

From at ■east in or about 20■ 3′  up tO and inc■ uding′  in or about

November ■8′  20■ 5′  within the Southern District of California and

e■ sewhere′   defendants DAVID STRO」 ′  aka  ｀`Fat Daザ e′ ″  JEFFREY STOFF′

ARTURO  DIAZ― RAMIREZ′   」AIME  BEHAR′   DUY  TRANG′  and  ALFREDO  BARBA′

knowingly and Wil■ fu■■y′  did conduct′   finance′  manage′  supervise′

direct and own al■  or part of an illegal gambling business′  as that

term is defined in Tit■ e ■8′  United States Code′  Section ■955(b)(■ )′

(2)′  and (3)′   to wit′   an illega■  poker and black」 ack buSiness that

vio■ ated California pena■  Code′  Sections 330 and 337」 ′ whiCh invo■ved

five or more persons who conducted′   financed′  managed′   supervised′

directed and owned all or part of said il■ ega■  gambling business′  and

which remained in substantial■ y continuous operation for a period in

excess of thirty days and had a gross revenue of S2′ 000.00 in any

sing■ e  day′   in  vio■ ation  of  Title  ■8′   United  States  Code′

Sections ■955 and 2.

Count 3

(Money Laundering conspiracy)

From at ■east in or about 20■ 3′  up tO and including′  in or about

October ■5′  20■ 5′  within the Southern District of  Ca■ ifornia and

e■ sewhere′  defendants DAVID STRO」 ′ aka F`at Dave′ ″ ⅣATTHEW GREEMOOOD′

」EFFREY  BROADT′   JEFFREY  STOFF′   ARTURO  DIAZ― RAMIREZ′  JAIME  BEHAR′

ROBERT  STRO」 ′  CRAIG  KOLK′   JEAN  PAUL  ROJO′   RICARDO  CASTELLANOS―

VELASQUEZ′  ALEXANDRA KANE′  BRYAN SIBBACH′  」OSEPH PALERMO′  CHRISTOPHER

PARSONS′   」EFFREY MOHR′   DUY TRANG′  ALI LAREYBI,  aka  A`lex′ ″  NASEEM

SALEM′   aka  N`ick′ ″  and  PALOMAR  CARD  CLUB′   did  knowing■ y  and

intentionally conspire  with each other and with others  known and
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unknown to the grand jury, to conduct financial tsransactions affecting

interstate and foreign commerce which involved the proceeds of

specified unlawful activiEy, that is, an iI1ega1 bookmaking business

and an illegal poker and blackjack business. knowing that the property

involved in Ehe financial transactions representsed the proceeds of

some form of unlawful activity, and knowing that the transactions were

designed, in whole or part, t.o conceal and disguise the nature,

location, source, ownership and conErol of Ehe proceeds of such

specifj-ed unlawful activity, and to avoid a transacEion reporting

requirement under stat.e or Federal law, in violatj-on of Title 18,

United stsatses Code. Sections 1955 (a) (1) (a) (i) and (j-i) .

All in violation of Title 18, United states Code, SecEion 1955(h) .

Count 4

(Failure Eo Maintain a Reasonabl-y Designed
Anti-Money Laundering Program)

From in or about 201-2, and continuing until in or about

November l-8, 2OL5, within the SouEhern District of California and

elsewhere, the defendants IIARVEY SOUZA and VC CARDROOM, Inc.,

dba "Seven Mile Casino, " fka "Vi11age Card Club. " toget,her with

ot.hers, did wifffully violate the Bank Secrecy Acts ("BSA"), Title 31,

United states Code, Sections 531-8 (h) and 5322, afld regulations issued

thereunder, specifically. Title 3L, Code of Federal, Regulat.ions,

secEion 1,02L.2L0 (a) (formerly l-03.120(d) ), by failing Lo develop.

imptement and maintaj-n an anti-money laundering program reasonably

designed !o comply wit.h Tit.le 3l-, Chaptser 53, subchapter II, and

regulations issued thereunder, aE VC CARDROOM, Inc.. dba "Seven Mil-e

Casino," fka "Village Card Club, " a domestsic financial institution

pursuanE Eo Title 31. United states Code, section 531-2 (a) (z) (x) .

4
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Specifically, the defendants HARVEY SOUZA and vC CARDROOM. Inc.,
dba "Seven Mile Casino," fka "Vi11age Card C1ub, " knowingly and

wi11fu11y faj-led to implement. and maint.ain reasonably designed

policies, procedures and int.ernal controls for: (1) verifying customer

idenlificaEion. in parEicular as to those custsomers who received in

excess of $10,000 in currency j-n a single day as reguired by the BSA,

(2) filing accurate and t.ruthful Currency Transaction Reports ("CTRs" )

for currency transactions in excess of $10,000. conducted by or on

behalf of the same person or entity on the same day,. (3) assuring that

CTRS were properly filed; and (4) providing adequate education and/or

training of appropriate personnel concerning their responsibilities
under Lhe anEi-money laundering prog:ram.

Al- l- in violation of Title 31, Unitsed Stsates Code, Sections 5318(h) (1)

and 5322 (a); TiEle 3l , code of Federal Regulations,

Section f02]- .2]-O (a); and Title 18, United St.ates Code, Section 2

Count 5

(Failure to MainEain a Reasonably Desj-gned
Anli -Money Laundering Program)

From in or about 20L2, and continuing until- in or about

November 18, 201-5, within the Southern DistricE of California and

elsewhere, the defendants NASEEM SAIEM. aka "Nick, " and PALOMAR CARD

CLUB, together wiEh others, did wiIlfu11y violatse tshe Bank Secrecy

Act, Titl-e 31. Unj-ted states Code, Sectj-ons 5318 (h) arld 5322, and

regulatj-ons issued thereunder, specifically, Title 31, Code of Federal

Regulations, Section 1,o2r.2Lo (al (formerly 1-03'120(d) ), by failing to

develop, implement and maj-nEaln an anti -money laundering program

reasonably designed to comply with Title 31' chapter 53 
'

Subchapter fI, and regulatsions issued thereunder ' at PAIoMAR CARD
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CLUB, a domestic financial institution pursuant to Title 31, UniLed

sEatses code, sectsion 5312(a) (z) (x).

specifically, Lhe defendants NASEEM SALEM, aka "Nick, " and

PALoMAR CARD CLUB, knowingly and willfully failed to implement and

maintain reasonably deslgned policies, procedures and internal

contsrols for: (1) verifying customer identificatsion. in particular as

to those customers who received in excess of $10,000 in currency in a

sj-ngle day as reguired by the BSA; (21 filing accurate and tsruLhful

CTRS for currency transactsj-ons in excess of $10,000, conducted by or

on behalf of the same person or entity on the same day; (3) assuring

t.hat. CTRs v/ere properly filed; and (4) providing adequate education

and/or training of appropriate personnel concerning their

responsibilj-ties under the anti-money laundering program.

All in vlolation of Title 3l-, Unltsed SEates Code, sections 5318 (h) (1)

and 5322 (a) ; Tit.Ie 31 , Code of Federal Regulations,

section fozl.2fo (a) ; and Title l-8, Uniled StaEes Code, section 2.

Count 5

(Transportsing hdividual tso Engage in Prostsitution)

on or about August 22, 20L4, defendants DAVID STRoJ, aka "Fat

Dave, " and .TEFFREY BRoADT, within the Southern District of Calj-fornia

and el-sewhere, knowingl-y tsransported I.B-M, in interstate and foreign

commerce, from Mexico to California and Nevada, with intent that I.B-M

engage in prostj-tutsion and sexual activitsy for which a person can be

charged with

in violation
ａ
　
ｄ

criminal offense, and aided and abetEed such conduct,'

Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2421 and 2.

6
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Count 7

(Transporling hdividual- to Engage in Prostsitution)

On or about October 30, 20L4, defendants DAVID STROJ, aka "Fat Dave,"

and ']EFFREY BROADT, within the Southern District. of California and

elsewhere, knowingly transported M.R, j-n intersEatse and forej-gn

commerce, from Mexico Lo Cafifornia, with intent thaE M.R engage in
proslitut.ion and sexual activj-ty for which a person can be charged

wit.h a criminal offense, and aided and abetsted such conduct.; in
violat.ion of Tits1e 18, United States Code, Sections 2421 and 2.

FORFEITURE ALLECATIONS

■    The  allegations  contained  in  Counts  ■  through  3′   and

Counts 6 and 7 are rea■ leged and by their reference ful■ y incorporated

herein fOr the purpose of al■ eging forfeiture to the United States of

America pursuant to the provisionS of Tit■ e ■8′  United States Code′

Sections 98■ (a)(■ )(A)′  981(a)(■ )(C)′  982(a)(■ ),  ■955(d)′  and 2428(b)′

and Title 28′  United States Code′  Section 2461(c).

2.   As a result of the commission of the offenses alleged in

Counts ■ and 2 of this indictment′  pursuant to Tit■ e ■8′  United States

Code, Sections 98■ (a)(■ )(C) and ■955(d)′  and Tit■ e 28′  United States

Code′  Section 246■ (c)′  defendants DAVID STRO」 ′ aka F`at Dave′ ″ MATTHEW

GREENWOOD′  」EFFREY BROADT′  JEFFREY STOFF′  ARTURO DIAZ― RAMIREZ′  JAIME

BEHAR′  ROBERT STRO」 ′ CRAIG KOLK′ JEAN PAUL ROJO′  JOSHUA JONES′  RI CARI10

CASTELLANOS― VELASQUEZ′  ALEメANDRA KANE′  BRYAN SIBBACH′  」OSEPH PALERMO′

THOMAS  MALLOZZI′   aka  T`ommy Ty′ ″  STEPHEN BEDNAR′   aka  S`tevie  T′ ″

CHRISTOPHER PARSONS′   」EFFREY MOHR′   KYLE ALLEN′   MICHAEL HIPPLE′  DUY

TRANG′  ALFREDO BARBA′  shal■ ′ upon conviction′   forfeit to the United

States a■ ■ the■ r rights′  tit■ e and interest in any and a■ ■ property′

real  and  personal′   constituting′   or  derived  from′   any  proceeds
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traceable Eo tshe violations,
money, used in the commission

and 2 of this indictment. The

is not limited to:

and any and all property, including

of the violatj-ons alfeged in Counts 1

property to be forfej-ted includes, buE

a. Wells Fargo Bank account number f95]-69791L in the name

David Stsroj, which was opened by defendants DAVID STRo,J,'

b. Bank of America account number 001-053902131 in tshe name

,Jef frey Stsoff and Carolyn Stevens, which was opened by defendant

.]EFFREY STOFF;

c. Wells Fargo Bank accounE number 92453]-3820 in Ehe name

Cralg Kolk and Marcela Badin, which was opened by defendanE CRAIG

KOLK;

d. Bank of America account number 001"54704297 7 in the name

Crai.g Ko1k, which was opened by defendant CRAIG KOLK;

e. We11s Fargo Bank account number 5959471134 in the name

Maxica Financial dba ,Jacques Roj o, which def endants ,fEAN PAUL ROJO j-s a

benef icial owner,'

f. Bank of Ameri-ca accounE number 325047976L53 in the name

Robert stroj. which was opened by defendant RoBERT sTRo,f ;

S. We1ls Fargo accounE number 5207497a64 in tshe name

Robert Stroj and ,faime stroj, which was opened by defendant RoBERT

STRO,J;

h. U.S. Bank account number f95470730a32 in the name of

Matthew P. Greenwood, which was opened by defendant MATTHEW GREENWOOD;

i. Bank of America account number 325038032961 in the name

of Artsuro v. Diaz, which was opened by defendants ARTURO DIAZ;

8
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j. Bank of America account nuniber 1789555456 held in the

name of Michae1 F. Hipple, which was opened by defendant MICHAEL

HIPPLE;

k, We1ls Fargo Bank accounts number 6358884432 held in the

name of Berenice G. Lopez Melesio aka cabriela Stroj, !,rhich defendant

DAVID STROJ is a benef icj-aI owner i

I. Palomar Card Club Player's Bank account held at

Nelghborhood National Bank account number 04000071-83, and held in the

name of Nasem "Nick" Sa1em, Dona1d Stsaats and Susan Staats;

m. Palomar Card Cl-ub Busi,ness Marker Bank account held at

Neighborhood National Bank account number 0400002739 and held in the

name of Naseem "Nick" Salem Donald Staats and Susan Staats;

n. MATTHEW GREENWOOD'S Player Bank account number P00044

held at Palomar Card Club;

o.   ⅣATTHEW  GREENW00D′ s

P0000■ 06■■ held at Vi■ ■age C■ ub′

Player Bank account number

p. .IEFFREY STOFF'S P1ayer Bank account number P00l-36 held

at Palomar Card Club;

q. ARTURO DIAZ's Player Bank accounc number P000009841

held at Village Club;

r. ARTURO DIAZ'S Player Bank account number P00028 held at

Pafomar Card Cfub;

s.DAVIDSTRo,J'sPlayerBankaccountsnumberP00l0Sheldat

Palomar Card Club;

t. DAVID STRO,J's P1ayer Bank account number Poo0010415

held at Village Club;

u. NASEEM SALEM'S Player Bank account number P00098 held

at Palomar Card CIub;

9
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v. $50,308.54 that. was seized on October 29, 20].4 from

We11s Fargo Bank account number :-95f5979}f belonging to DAVfD STRO,I;

w. $51,501.00 that was seized on October 29, 2014 from a
safe located at DAVID STRO,J's residence;

x. a 2008 Dodge Viper, VIN 1B3.IZ55Z58V2OLO42 , registered

to David Stroj t.hat was seized on October 29, 201-4 from DAVID STRO,J;

y. 54t776.00 that was seized on OcEober 29, 2Ol4 from

MATTHEW GREENWOOD at his residence, Iocat.ed aE 5408 La Jolfa Scenj.c

Drive, La ,folla, California, CA 92037;

z. $8,555.00 that was seized on October 29, 2014 from

.TOSHUA ITONES aI MATTHEW GREENWOOD, S residence;

aa. a 2008 Chrysler 300 LX. VrN: 2C3KA43R88H2953L6, CA

LP#5F8Y827, currently registered to: Robert Stroj. 4 Pomegranat.e

Street, Ladera Ranch, CA 92594, which was purchased by defendant

ROBERT STROJ in or about 2012;

bb. a 2008 Land Rover. VIN: SALME154X8A293552, CA

LP#5PrP555, currently regisEered to: Alexandra Kane, 811- S. Bedford

St., Apt 205, Los Angeles, CA; which was purchased by defendant

ALEXANDRA KANE j-n or about 201L;

cc. the real property l-ocated ats 4 Pomegranate Street,

Ladera Ranch. CA 92594. L.,ega1 descriptsion: Lot 20 of Tracts No. 15117.

as shown on a Subdivision Map filed on December ZA, ZOOL, in Book 826,

at Pages 1tso 3, inclusive, of Miscel-laneous Maps, in the Office of

the Orange Countsy Recorder (APN: 741-09L-21);

dd. the real property located at 801 Nortsh Valley View

Drive, Chula Vlstsa , cA 9]-9],4 . Legal description: Lot 10 of Chul-a

VisEa Tract No. 92-02 SaLt Creek Ranch Neighborhood 5 Unit No. 9, in

the City of Chula Vista, County of San Diego, SLaLe of California,
10



■

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

■0

■■

■2

■3

■4

■5

■6

■7

■8

■9

20

2■

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

according to Map thereof no. 13597, f il-ed in the office of Lhe County

Recorder of San Diego County on December 3, 1998 (APN: 595-661-62-00);

ee. the real properLy located. at 145 Penn ForresE Drive.

Albrightsville, PA 18210. Legal description: The land hereinafter

referred tso is situated in Ehe City of Albrightsville, County of

Carbon, State of PA, and is described as fol-lows: A11 thats certain
piece. parcel and tract of l-and situated in the Township of Penn

Forest, County of Carbon, and CommonwealLh of Pennsylvania, and

described as Lot 2Ol2 in Section IV, Towamensing Trail-s, on a

Subdivision Plan recorded in the Recorder of Deeds Office in and for
Carbon Countsy, Pennsylvania on Octsober 17, 1974 in Map Book Vol-ume 1,

Page 233 (APN: 22A-51--D2OL2l;

ff. the real- property located at 150 N. 7tsh street,

Lehlghton, PA 18235. Legal description: The land hereinaftser

referred to is sit.uated in the City of Lehightson, County of Carbon,

State of PA, and is described as follows: All tshose cerEain four (4)

contiguous l-ots or pieces of land sj-tuat.e in the Borough of Lehlghton,

Carbon County. Pennsyl-vania. Being situatse on Ehe West side of Seventh

Street and numbered in the pl-an or p1ots of Lehightson improvement

Company made by Wesley Boyer, C.8., as Lot Nos. l2!, 122, L23, and

124. Being bounded and described as follows: Beginning (and describing

al-l of Ehe said Lots as a Unit) at a point in the property line of

Seventh SEreet distant two hundred seventy-eight (278], feet. from t.he

cenEer line of Cfpress Streets. Thence, from said point and extending

Southwardly a distance of Eighty (80) feet along Seventh Stsreet,

aforesaid, to a point; Lhence, extending westwardly in lengEh or deptsh

of that same width, beEween paraIleI l-ines at right angles to the said

sevenEh Street, a distance of one hundred eighty-nine and seventy-five

11
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one― hundredths  (■ 89.75) feet to an al■ ey.  Containing ■5′ ■80 square

feet of ■and′  a■ together. Bounded on the North by Lot No. ■20′  on the

East by Seventh Street′ on the South by Lot No. ■25 and on the West by

said a■ ■ey (APN: 84A5-29-F4).

3.   If any of the above― described forfeitable property′   as a

resu■ t of any act or omission of the defendants ―

(a) Cannot be ■ocated upon the exercise of due

di■ igence′

(b) has been transferred or so■ d to′  or deposited

with′  a third party′

(C) haS been p■ aced beyond the 」urisdiCtion of the Court,

(d) has been substantial■ y diminished in value′ or

(e) haS been comming■ ed with other property which cannot be

subdivided without difficulty′

it  is  the  intent  of  the  united  States′   pursuant  to  Tit■ e  2■ ′

United States Code′  Section 853(p) as incorporated by Tit■ e 28′  United

States Coder Section 246■ (c)′  tO Seek forfeiture of any other property

of the defendants up to the value of the said property(ies) ■isted

above as being subject to forfeiture.

Al■    in   violation   of   Title   ■8′    Un■ ted   States   Code′

Sections 98■ (a)(■ )(C)′  982(a)(■ )′   ■955(d)′  and 2428(b)′  and Tit■ e 28′

United States Code′  SectiOn 246■ (c).

4.   As a resu■ t of the commission of the offense al■ eged in

Count 3 of this indictment′  pursuant to Title ■8′  United States Code′

sections 982(a)(■ )′  defendants DAVID STRO」 ′ aka F`at DaVe′
″ JEFFREY

BROADT′  ROBERT STRO」 ′ MATTHEW GREENW00D′   CRAIG KOLK′   JEFFREY STOFF′

ALI LAREYBI′  aka A`■ex′ ″ 」AIME BEHAR′  ARTURO DIAZ― RAMIREZ′  JEAN PAUL

RO」 0′  RICARDO CASTELLANOS― VELASQUEZ′   ALEXANDRA KANE′   BRYAN SIBBACH′
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」OSEPH PALERMO′  CHRISTOPHER PARSONS′  JEFFREY MOHR′  DUY TRANG′  NASEEM

SALEM′  aka  N`ick′ ″  and PALOMAR CARD CLUB′   shal■ ′  upon conviction′

forfeit to the United States a■ l their rights′  tit■ e and interest in

any and all property′  rea■  and personal′  involved in such offense and

any property traceab■ e to such property.  The property to be forfe■ ted

inc■udes′  but is not ■imited to:

a.   We■ ls FargO Bank account number ■95■ 69790■  in the name

David Stroj′  which was opened by defendant DAVID STRO」 ′

b.   Bank of America account number 001053902■ 3■ in the name

」effrey Stoff  and Caro■ yn Stevens′   which was  opened by defendant

」EFFREY STOFF′

c.   Wells FargO Bank account number 92463■ 3820 in the name

Craig Ko■ k and Marce■ a Badin′   which was opened by defendant cRAIG

KOLK′

d.   Bank of America account number 00■ 647042977 in the name

Craig Ko■k, which was opened by defendant cRAIG KOLK′

e.   We■ ■s FargO Bank account number 596947■ ■34 in the name

Maxica Financia■  dba Jacques Ro」 o′  whiCh defendant JEAN PAUL ROJO is a

benefic■ a■ owner′

f.   Bank of America account number 32504■ 976■ 53 in the name

Robert Stroj′  which was opened by defendant ROBERT STRO」 ′

go   Wells  Fargo  acCOunt  number  5207497■ 64  in  the  name

Robert Stroj and 」amie StrOj′   WhiCh Was Opened by defendant ROBERT

STRO」 ′

h.   U.S. Bank account number ■96470730■32 in the name of

Matthew P. Greenwood′  Which WaS Opened by defendant MATTHEW GREEヽ
コr00D,

1.   Bank Of America account number 32503803296■  in the name

of ArturO U  Diaz′  WhiCh WaS opened by defendant ARTURO DIAZ′
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j. Well-s Fargo Bank account number 5358884432 held in the

name of Berenice c. Lopez Melesj.o aka Gabriela Stroj, whj-ch defendant

DAVID STRO,J is a benef j-cj-a1 owner,.

k. Palomar Card Club Player' s Bank account held at:

0400007183 and held in theNeighborhood NaEional Bank accounE number

name of Naseem "Nj-ck" Sa1em, Donald Staats and Susan Staats,'

Marker Bank account held at

0400002739 and held in the

and Susan Staats;

I. Pafomar Card Club Business

Neighborhood Natsional Bank account number

name of Naseem "Ni-ck" Salem, DonaLd Staats

m. MATTHEW GREENWOOD'S Player Bank accounE number P00044

held at Palomar Card Cl-ub;

n. MATTHEW GREENWOOD's Pl-ayer Bank account number

P00001051-1 held at Village Club;

o. ,IEFFREY STOFF'S Player Bank account number P00l-35 held

at Palomar Card Club;

p. ARTURO DIAZ's Player Bank account number P000009841

held at Village Club;

q. ARTURO DIAZ'S Player Bank account number P00028 held at

Palomar Card CLub;

r, DAVID STRO.I'S Player Bank account number P00108 hel-d at

Palomar Card CIub;

s. DAVID STROJ's Player Bank account number P000010416

held at. Village Club;

t. NASEEM SA],EM'S Player Bank accounts number P00098 hel-d

at Palomar Card CIub;

u. $50,308.54 that was sej-zed on October 29, 20]-4 from

Wel1s Fargo Bank account number ]-95]-697901 belonging to DAVID STRO,J;
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v.   S6■ ′50■ .00 that was seized on October 29, 20■4 from a

safe ■ocated at DAVID STRO」 's residence′

w.   a 2008 Dodge Viper′  VIN ■B3」Z65Z58V20■ 042′  registered

to David Stro] that was seized on October 29′  20■4 from DAVID STRO」 ′

x.   S4′ 776.00  that was  seized on October 29′   20■ 4  from

ⅣATTHEW GREENW00D at his residence′   ■ocated at 6408 La 」olla Scenic

Drive′  La 」ol■ a′  ca■ifornia′  CA 92037,

y    a  2008  Chrysler  300  LX′   VIN:  2C3KA43R88H2983■ 6′  CA

LP#6FBY827′   currently  reg■ stered  to:  Robert  Stro]′   4  Pomegranate

Street′  Ladera Ranch′   CA 92694′  which wa s purchased by defendant

ROBERT STRO」  in or about 20■ 2, and

z.   a  2008   Land  Rover′    VIN:   SALME■ 54X8A293652′   CA

LP#6PIP655′  currently registered to: A■ exandra Kane′   8■■ S. Bedford

St.′  Apt.  205′   Los Angeles′   CA′  which was purchased by defendant

ALEXAぶDRA KANE in or about 20■ ■′

aa.  the  rea■  property  ■ocated  at  4  Pomegranate  Street′

Ladera Ranch′  CA 92694.  Lega■  description: Lot 20 of Tract No. ■6■■7′

as shown on a Subdivision Map filed on December 26′  200■ , in Book 826′

at Pages ■ to 3′  inclusive′  of Miscellaneous Maps′   in the Office of

the Orange County Recorder (APN: 74■ -09■ -2■ ),

bb.  the  rea■  property ■ocated at  80■  North Val■ ey View

Drive′  Chula Vista′   CA 9■ 9■4.   Lega■  description: Lot ■0 0f Chu■ a

Vista Tract No. 92-02 Sa■ t Creek Ranch Neighborhood 6 Unit No. 9′  in

the City of Chu■ a Vista′  County of San DiegO′  State of Ca■ ifornia′

according to Map thereof no. ■3697′  fi■ed in the office of the County

Recorder of San Diego county on December 3′  ■998 (APN: 595-66■ -62-00)′

cc.  the rea■  property ■ocated at ■45 Penn ForreSt Drive′

Albrightsvil■ e′  PA  ■82■ 0.  Lega■  description:  The  ■and hereinafter
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referred to is situated in the City of Albrightsville, County of

Carbon, State of PA, and is described as foll-ows: A11 that cerlain
piece, parcel and tract of l-and situated in the Township of Penn

Forest, County of Carbon, and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and

described as L,ot 2072 in Section TV. Towamensing Trails, on a

Subdivision Plan recorded in the Recorder of Deeds Office i-n and for

Carbon County, Pennsylvania on OcLober 17, l.974 in Map Book Volume 1,

Page 233 (APN: 22A-51-D2012),' and

dd. the real property located at 160 N. 7th Street,

Lehighton, PA 18235. Legal description: The land hereinafter

referred to is situated in the City of Lehighton, CounEy of Carbon,

stat.e of PA, and is descrj.bed as follows: A11 those certain four (4)

cont.iguous lots or pieces of land siEuate in the Borough of I.ehighton.

Carbon CounEy. Pennsylvanj-a. Being situate on the West sj-de of Seventh

Streets and numbered in the plan or pl-ot of Lehighton improvement

Company made by Wesley Boyer, C.8., as Lot Nos. l2a, 122, L23, and

124. Being bounded and described as follows: Beginning (and describing

all of t.he said ]-,otss as a Unit ) at a point in t.he property line of

SevenEh Street distant two hundred sevent.y-eighE (278\ feet from the

center line of cl4)ress street. Thence, from said poinL and extending

Southwardly a distsance of Eighuy (80) feeE along SevenEh Streets,

aforesaid, to a points; thence, extending Westwardly in lengt.h or depth

of that same width. between paral1e1 lines at rights angles to the said

Seventh street, a dj-stance of one hundred eighty-nine and seventy-five

one-hundredths (l-89.75) feets tso an all-ey. Containing 15,180 square

feet of Iand, altogether. Bounded on the North by Lot No' l-20; on the

East by seventh street; on the south by Lot No. 125 and on tshe west by

said alIeY (APN: 84A5-29-I'4\ -
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5. rf
result of any

(a)

any of the above-described forfeitabfe property, as a

act or omission of the defendants -

cannot be located upon uhe exercise of due

diligence;
(b) has been t.ransferred or sold tso, or deposited

wit.h, a Ehird party;

has been pl-aced beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

has been substantially diminished in value; or

has been commingled with other property which cannots be

subdivided without dif f iculty;

it is tshe intent of the United Stsatses. pursuant Eo Tit.le 21-,

United states Code, section 853(p) as incorporated by Title l-8, United

StaEes Code, section 982 (b) . to seek forfeitsure of any other propertsy

of the defendant up to Ehe value of t.he said property(ies) listed

above as being subject tso forfeit.ure.

6. As a result of the commission of the offense alleged in

Counts 5 and 7 of this indictmenE, pursuanE to TiLle 1-8. Unitsed States

Code, Sectsion 2428, defendants DAvfD sTRoJ , aka "Fat Dave," and

JEFFREY BRoADT shaIl forfelt Eo the UniEed States any property, real

and personal, used or intended to be used to commit or t.o facilitate

the commission of the violation, and any property. real and personal ,

constsitutj-ng or derived from proceeds obLained, directly and

indirectly, as result of the violation.

7. If any of the above-described forfeitable property' as a

result of any act or omission of the defendants -

(a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due

Ｃ

　

　

ｄ

　

　

ｅ

diligence;
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(b) has been transferred or so■ d to′  or deposited

with′  a third party′

(C) haS been p■aced beyond the 」urisdiCtion of the Court′

(d) has been substantia■■y diminished in va■ ue′ or

(e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be

subdivided without difficu■ ty′

it  is  the  intent  of  the  Uhited  States′   pursuant  to  Tit■ e  2■ ′

United States Code, Section 853(p)as incorporated by Tit■ e ■8′  United

States Code, Section 2428(b)′  to seek forfeiture of any other property

of the defendants up to the value of the said property(ies) ■isted

above as being subject to forfeiture.

A■■ Pursuant to Tit■ e ■8′  United states Code′  Sections 98■ (a)(■ )(A)′

98■ (a)(■ )(C), 982(a)(■ )′  ■955(d)′  2428(b)′  and Tit■ e 28′  United states

Code′  Section 2461(c).

DATED:  November ■9, 20■ 5.

A TRUE BILL:

LAURA E  DUFFY

ζIきピalt Attorney
ギl]il首嘗:き∫lξ :::騰l靡
きあ|`「t品群ig品lonichPy OfCe and m mylega
custody                    ―

CLERK,U S OISTRICI COURT
souTHERN DIS可闘C■ OF CA日 FORNl^

By
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Foreperson

Unit.ed Statgtr Attorney

By:




